
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 23 AUGUST 2018

A MEETING of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on THURSDAY, 23 

AUGUST 2018 at 10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

17 August 2018 

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute (Pages 3 - 8) 2 mins

Minute of Audit Committee held on 26 June 2018 for approval.  (Copy 
attached.)  

5. The Petitions Procedure (Pages 9 - 10) 2 mins

Copy of extract from the Scottish Borders Council Petitions Procedure 
attached.

6. Welfare Benefits Service Changes Petition 30 mins

(a)  Petition (Pages 11 - 
20)

Copy attached of Petition submission form 
(b)  Briefing Note by Service Director Customer & 

Communities 
(Pages 21 - 
24)

(Copy attached.)
7. Any Other Audit Items Previously Circulated. 

8. Any Other Audit Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

9. SCRUTINY BUSINESS

10. Delivery of the IT Strategy and Plan within Scottish Borders 20 mins

Public Document Pack



Presentation by Chief Financial Officer.  (Copy to follow)
11. Any Other Scrutiny Items Previously Circulated. 

12. Any Other Scrutiny Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman, 
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton (Vice-Chairman), N. Richards, H. Scott, R. Tatler and E. Thornton-Nicol

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson  01835 826502
Email: fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of Meeting of the AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council 
Chamber, Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St Boswells on Tuesday, 26 June 2018 at 
10.00 am

Present:- Councillors S Bell (Chairman), H Anderson, K Chapman, S Hamilton, R Tatler  
and E Thornton-Nicol (during Item 4).

Apologies:- Councillors J Fullarton, N Richards, H Scott.  Mr M Middlemiss.
In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, Chief Officer Audit and Risk, Financial and 

Commercial Director SB Cares, Democratic Services Officer (P Bolson); Mr A 
Haseeb and Mr G Samson– Audit Scotland.

1. WELCOME 
The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee.

2. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of 7 June 2018.  

DECISION
NOTED for signature by the Chairman.

3. ACTION TRACKER 
There had been circulated copies of the Action Tracker for the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee.  With regard to the entry on 25 September 2017 relating to corrective action in 
place to address the issues identified in the Fleet Management Workforce Plan, it was 
agreed that the Chief Officer Roads would be invited to attend the next meeting to provide 
an update to Members of the Committee.

DECISION
NOTED:-
(i) the Action Tracker; and

(ii) that the Chief Officer Roads would provide an update to Members at the next 
meeting of the Committee in respect of corrective action in place to address 
the issues identified in the Fleet Management Workforce Plan.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT IN SERVICES 
4.1 The Chairman welcomed Ms Jenni Craig, Service Director Customer and Communities, to 

the meeting.  Ms Craig was in attendance to give a presentation on the strategic risks 
affecting her service and the internal controls and governance in place to manage and 
mitigate those risks.   Ms Craig began by providing some background and explained that 
the areas covered by Customer and Communities, namely Customer Advice and Support; 
Business Change and Programme Management; Business Planning, Performance and 
Policy Development; and Communities and Partnerships each had Service Risk 
Registers.  These Registers were reviewed on a quarterly basis and had been developed 
through the Business Planning Process.  They were owned by the Service Managers, 
reviewed by the Service Directors and Management Team and were escalated to CMT 
when necessary.  The key factors and major changes influencing the service included: 
financial pressures; resources and the changing demand on the skills mix required; 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



changing service delivery models; the increasing demand and requirement for IT; 
Government policies and legislation; Welfare Reform; and economic and environmental 
change.  In terms of the key skills now required, work was ongoing with HR to ensure that 
these skills were in place both to enable staff to meet the increasing demand by the public 
and to allow the public to access Council services.  Government policies and legislation 
could have tight implementation timescales with increased staff resources required, eg 
Universal Credit which had to be implemented by 13 June 2018, and risk could increase 
as a result.  Current risks in the main were driven by service responsibility and included: 
failure of IT systems; unprepared for significant legislative change; ineffective change 
management to modernise the organisation; insufficient skilled resources to meet service 
demands; focussing on short-term savings which could result in failure to achieve 
objectives/targets and damage to the Council’s reputation; not meeting customer service 
expectations; and unable to demonstrate best value due to failure to embed a self-
assessment approach across the organisation.  The Corporate Risk relating to a focus on 
short-term savings currently scored 9 (amber) on the Register and Ms Craig explained 
what mitigation had been and would be implemented.  Management was working towards 
aligning Business Plans and Service Plans with available resources in order to reduce the 
risk.  The Service Risk relating to major legislative and economic/social change which 
could result in increased demand on services and the ability of the service to provide 
customers with the help, advice and statutory assistance required currently scored 12 
(high amber treat) on the Register.  Again, Ms Craig explained what mitigation had been 
and would be implemented and this included exploring opportunities for Community 
Planning Partnership joint working; and having a flexible resource and agile methods such 
as manual work arounds when there was a need to react to late legislation.  Single points 
of failure would also be identified and addressed to reduce risk.  Ms Craig advised that 
within the Digital Customer Access Project, lack of resources within SBC and the potential 
impact on delivery of the project scored 12 on the Risk Register.  Any resultant delays in 
delivery and benefits could potentially result in additional costs to the Council.  Members 
noted the mitigation measures being implemented and the aim to provide a “seamless” 
experience for customers within a complex landscape.  Ms Craig summarised the 
Service’s approach to managing risk which included: adhering to a consistent corporate 
process and framework; effectively managing projects, programmes and change; 
delivering risk workshops as a key aspect of the Business Planning Process; conducting 
self-evaluation, inspections and internal/external scrutiny; delivering effective and 
appropriate training; and regular monitoring of strategic service and operation risks and 
performance indicators.

4.2 Ms Craig responded to a number of questions raised by Members.  In terms of an internal 
communications strategy going forward, Ms Craig advised that work was ongoing to 
develop an internal communications plan for staff and arrangements were being 
considered for a programme of Roadshows across the Council area.  Appropriate 
consultation was also taking place.  The plan would be circulated to Members in due 
course.  With regard to security of the IT network and pressure during severe winter 
conditions, the Chief Financial Officer explained how the huge increase in staff trying to 
access the Council network remotely caused severe pressure on the IT firewall.  A 
decision was made to close off system access to staff to preserve access for those 
delivering emergency/essential services.  Measures would be in place to avoid this 
situation in the future.  In terms of Corporate Management involvement, Members were 
advised that Welfare Reform and Universal Credit were live issues and were being 
addressed by both the Service and Corporately.  Further to the development of an Action 
Plan and staff training, additional work was being taken forward to consider what changes 
would now be required following the implementation of the new GDPR regulations.  Ms 
Stacey confirmed that Information Governance, which included GDPR, and Workforce 
Planning were included on the Internal Audit Work Schedule for 2018/19.  The Chairman 
thanked Ms Craig for her interesting and comprehensive presentation.

DECISION
NOTED the presentation. 

Page 4



5. SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL DRAFT REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS 2017/18 
5.1 With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 28 June 2017, there had been circulated 

copies of a report and associated papers by the Chief Financial Officer on the draft 
Annual Report and Accounts for Scottish Borders Council, Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund, Common Good Funds, Charitable Trusts, Bridge Homes LLP, SB Supports 
LLP and SB Cares LLP.  The report provided the Audit and Scrutiny Committee with an 
opportunity to scrutinise the draft Annual Reports and Accounts for the year ended 31 
March 2018 for Scottish Borders Council and associated Group Accounts prior to 
submission for External Audit Inspection by the statutory deadline of 30 June 2018.  The 
report summarised the financial transactions for 2017/18 and the balance sheet positions 
as at 31 March 2018 as set out in the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 
2014.  In addition, Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 required 
annual accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice, primarily 
comprising the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2017/18 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2017/18 supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  The Pension Fund Accounts were required to 
adhere to the Local Government Pension Scheme Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 
which specified what must be contained in the Annual Report and Accounts.  The 
Common Good and Trust Reports adhered to the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (FRSSE), the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).  Following audit and a public inspection 
period the finalised Audit report and Audited Accounts would be submitted to Council in 
September 2018.

5.2 The Chief Financial Officer then summarised Scottish Borders Council draft reports and 
accounts by means of a presentation.  He detailed the 2017/18 highlights which included 
– a Revenue out-turn of £1.029m underspend; and £12.286m of Financial Plan savings 
delivered, of which 64% was recurring.  Net Assets (excluding Pension Fund liabilities) 
had increased by £38.6m net on the Balance Sheet.  The Balance Sheet demonstrated a 
significant improvement, materially affected by Actuarial Gains on the Pension Fund Net 
Assets/Liabilities (£70.5m) and an overall surplus on the revaluation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment (£53.6m).  Capital Expenditure was £36m with Fixed Asset NVB of 
£536.5m.  The presentation included the requirements under the Local Authority Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2014 and the Council’s own Accounts timetable.  The Chief 
Financial Officer advised that the Council’s Audited Accounts were required to be 
published on its website no later than 31 October 2018.  The presentation included an 
analysis of Revenue Expenditure by department and a breakdown of how efficiency 
savings had been achieved.  A reduction in turnover was reported in respect of external 
trading by SB Contracts and Members noted that this was as a direct result of a 
continuing challenging external market.  Mr Robertson went on to explain the - Statutory 
Accounting Adjustments; General Fund Balances; Balance Sheet overview; and Capital 
Out-turn for 2017/18.  Group Accounts were consolidated as detailed in the full report for 
Scottish Borders Council.

5.3 With reference to the Pension Fund, Mr Robertson confirmed that Scottish Borders 
Council was one of the best funded LGPS nationally.  In response to a question relating to 
Common Good Funds, Mr Robertson advised that an Annual Seminar was scheduled to 
take place on 28 August 2018 and it was agreed that the Statement of Common Good 
Trustees’ responsibilities would be circulated to all Members separately.

DECISION

(a) NOTED the Draft Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 for Scottish Borders 
Council and associated Group Accounts; and

Page 5



(b) AGREED to:-

(i) support their submission for review by the External Auditors, Audit 
Scotland  for Scottish Borders Council, Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund, Common Good and Trust Funds Accounts; and

(ii) support submission for review by KPMG who continued to provide 
the external audit of the Council subsidiaries SB Cares, SB Supports 
and Bridge Homes which were not Registered Charities.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 11.45 am and reconvened at 11.50 am. 

6. EXTERNAL AUDIT INTERIM MANAGEMENT REPORT 2017/18 
With reference to paragraph 4 of the Minute of 28 June 2017, there had been circulated 
copies of an Interim Management Report by Audit Scotland for the year 2017/18.  The 
report summarised the key issues identified during the year and included testing key 
controls within the Council’s financial systems to gain assurance over the processes and 
systems used in the preparation of financial statements.  In addition, Audit Scotland had 
carried out early substantive testing of income and expenditure transactions and had 
reviewed the Council’s progress with the National Fraud Initiative (NFI).  The findings 
would be used by Audit Scotland to determine its approach during the 2017/18 financial 
statements audit.  Further work had been carried out on the wider dimension audit of 
reviews of NFI investigation, General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the results 
would be detailed in the Audit Scotland Annual Audit report.  Mr Samson advised that 
some control weaknesses had been identified during the audit as summarised in Exhibit 2 
within the report.  The Management response/action plan in each case was also included 
in the report.  Officers clarified a number of points raised by Members and Mr Samson 
confirmed that Business World ERP was, in the main, delivering what was expected.  
There were, however, some aspects of the system that were not yet fully operational but 
the Chief Financial Officer confirmed that work was ongoing with CGI to resolve these 
issues within the contract.  It was noted that the Committee had a continuing role to 
scrutinise this area of Council business.

DECISION
NOTED the report.

7. NATIONAL PERFORMANCE REPORTS BY AUDIT SCOTLAND 
7.1 With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 28 June 2016, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing Members of the Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee with a list of recently published National Performance Reports by 
Audit Scotland which were relevant to Local Government.  The report also proposed their 
scheduled presentation to Committee for consideration.  The report noted that the Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee’s purpose was to have a high level oversight of the framework for 
internal control, risk management and governance within the Council and it was regarded 
good practice for the Committee to take account of relevant reports from external 
inspection bodies such as Audit Scotland.  Ms Stacey advised that two reports entitled 
“Challenges and Performance 2018” and “Councils’ Use of Arm’s-Length Organisations” 
were two such documents of interest to SBC which could also be used for learning 
purposes.  Ms Stacey also notified Members that presentations to the Committee on the 
circumstances and situations relating to the Dundee City Council Significant Fraud and 
the City of Edinburgh Council Report on Schools would be scheduled for September 
2018.

7.2 Discussion followed and Members’ questions were answered.  With reference to the 
publication entitled “Challenges and Performance 2018”, Members requested that the 
Scrutiny Tool for Members referred to on page 8 of the document be circulated to assist 
them in their scrutiny role.  Concern was raised in respect of the level of waste collected 

Page 6



within the Scottish Borders.  Members considered the document to be very user friendly 
and easy to understand. The Chief Financial Officer confirmed that reports such as this 
from Audit Scotland were regularly included on the Corporate Management Team Agenda 
for discussion and were also circulated to Members.  

DECISION
(a) NOTED:-

(i) the report and list of recently published National Performance reports 
by Audit Scotland; and

(ii) the reports by Audit Scotland entitled “Local Government Challenges 
and Performance 2018” and “Councils’ Use of Arm’s Length 
Organisations”.

(b) AGREED the proposed schedule for presentation of the National 
Performance reports by Audit Scotland.

8. PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 13 November 2017, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing an update and 
overview to the Committee on the status and implementation by Management of audit 
recommendations previously agreed in Internal Audit reports.  Information relating to 
Internal Audit recommendations which had not yet been fully implemented was detailed in 
the Appendix to the report.  Some concern was raised regarding four outstanding 
recommendations relating to Complaints, to which Ms Craig responded earlier in the 
meeting, one outstanding recommendation relating to Fleet Management workforce plan 
referred to in the Action Tracker, and two outstanding recommendations relating to Roads 
Management and Flood Risk and Coastal Management and it was agreed that the 
appropriate officers would be asked to attend the next meeting of the Committee to 
address these items.  Ms Stacey answered Members’ questions relating to the Appendix.

DECISION

(a) ACKNOWLEDGED satisfaction with the progress made by Management in 
implementing Internal Audit recommendations, subject to those concerns 
raised being addressed. 

(b) AGREED that appropriate officers would be asked to attend the next meeting 
of the Committee to address one outstanding recommendation relating to 
Fleet Management workforce plan and two outstanding recommendations 
relating to Roads Management and Flood Risk and Coastal Management.

9. AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 AND ANNUAL 
SELF-EVALUATION 
With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of 28 March 2017, there had been circulated 
copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing Members with the Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18.  The report also incorporated the annual 
self-assessment using the CIPFA Audit Committee Guidance.  The report noted that the 
outcome of the self-assessments was a high degree of performance against the good 
practice principles and a medium degree of effectiveness.  This was considered to be the 
result of the significant change in membership of the Committee following Local 
Government elections in May 2017.  With reference to external membership of the 
Committee, Ms Stacey confirmed that a report would be submitted to Council in August 
2018 requesting that a Selection Committee be convened to progress external 
appointments to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.

DECISION
Page 7



(a) APPROVED the Audit and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18 which 
incorporated its self-assessments using the CIPFA Audit Committee 
guidance.

(b) AGREED that:-

(i) the Audit and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18 be 
presented to Scottish Borders Council and published on the SBC 
website; and

(ii) that a report be presented to Council in August 2018 requesting that a 
Selection Committee be convened to progress external appointments 
to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.

The meeting concluded at 12.40 pm  

Page 8



Scottish Borders Council
Extract from the Audit & Scrutiny Committee Petitions Procedure

14. The procedure at the meeting, for each petition considered, shall be as 
follows:

(i) the meeting shall be in public unless the subject matter of the petition 
would be deemed to be confidential under the terms of Section 7A of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973;

(ii) the principal petitioner, or named deputy, shall give a statement in 
explanation of the petition;

(iii) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(iv) there will be an opportunity for any Director(s), Executive Member(s) 
and Community Planning Partner representative(s) present to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(v) a response to the petition may be heard from a Director, Executive 
Member and/or Community Planning Partner representative present 
at the meeting;

(vi) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of any Director, Executive Member(s) and Community 
Planning Partner representative(s) present at the meeting;

(vii) there will be an opportunity for the petitioner or their named deputy 
to ask questions of any Elected Member, Director or Community 
Planning Partner representative present at the meeting; 

(viii)Members of the Committee shall then discuss the information 
available and consider their findings.  The Committee may defer a 
decision should further information be required. 

Note:  any contribution on behalf of the petition from a second or other 
speaker(s) shall be at the discretion of the Chairman.  The public will not 
be allowed to speak at the meeting unless invited to do so by the 
Chairman.

15. The Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall agree to one of the following:-

(i) refer the petition to another Committee or Director, with or without a 
recommendation or comment.  That Committee or Director shall then 
make the final decision which could include taking no further action; 

1Page 9

Agenda Item 5



(ii) refer the petition to the relevant Community Planning Partner, with or 
without a recommendation or comment, if appropriate; 

(iii) that the issue(s) raised do not merit or do not require further action. 

16. The decision of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee, and any reason for that 
decision, shall be recorded in the Minute of the Meeting and a copy of the 
Minute shall be sent to the principal petitioner by Democratic Services 
staff.  Where the petition is referred to a Director or another body, the 
responsibility for communicating the final outcome of the petition is also 
referred.  Updates on these outcomes will be provided to the Audit & 
Scrutiny Committee.  

17. There will be no right of appeal in response to a final decision made in 
response to a petition.

18. The usage and effectiveness of the petitions procedure shall be reviewed 
on an annual basis.

 

2Page 10



Page 11

Agenda Item 6a



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Scrutiny Committee - 23 August 2018

PETITION - WELFARE BENEFITS SERVICE CHANGES

Briefing Note By Service Director Customer & Communities

AUDIT & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

23 August 2018

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 The briefing note advises the Audit & Scrutiny Committee of the 
background to a petition received in relation to Welfare Benefits 
Service Changes.

1.2 Since 1 November 2017 Customer Services, the Homelessness and 
Welfare Benefits Services have merged and restructured to become one 
integrated service called Customer Advice and Support Service.

1.3 Welfare Benefits Officers are now known as Financial Inclusion Officers, 
forming part of the Financial Support and Inclusion Team along with the 
Scottish Welfare Fund Team.  This team sits within the wider 
Homelessness and Financial Support Team.

1.4 The aim of the restructure was to ensure that the level of service provided 
continued and in some areas improved, ensuring Scottish Borders Council 
(SBC) was prepared for ongoing Welfare Reform including the rollout of 
Universal Credit.  The Department for Work and Pensions  (DWP) 
expectation on customers to self-serve online has created increased 
demands on Council services to assist customers.

1.5 Prior to 1 November 2017 the equivalent of 1.7 Welfare Benefit Assistants 
were employed to assist with basic benefit enquiries including form filling 
with customers.  We now have 49 Customer Advice & Support Advisors 
(CASA’s) across a wider range of locations, with a remit to assist 
customers at the first point of contact with their enquiry whether they 
present in a locality office face to face, over the telephone or online. These 
Advisers already deal with a range of benefit enquiries and applications as 
well as carrying out assessments for blue badges.  The aim is to provide a 
holistic service where a customer can speak to the same member of staff 
on a range of topics.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6b



Audit & Scrutiny Committee - 23 August 2018

1.6 The re-development of some former welfare benefits staff into other areas 
within CASS has retained their expert knowledge and skills within the 
service.  Both customers and staff are therefore benefiting from easier 
knowledge and service accessibility and the new structure provides wider, 
better accessibility to learning opportunities, access to systems, training 
and support.

1.7 SBC has for many years contracted the Borders Citizens Advice 
Consortium (BCAC) to provide services to customers including benefit, 
money and debt advice and assistance to challenge benefit decisions.  
Contract monitoring meetings occur quarterly between SBC managers and 
BCAC managers. Quarterly liaison meetings occur between front line SBC 
team leaders and BCAC managers to discuss trends, issues and share best 
practice.  SBC and BCAC staff regularly attend external meetings to 
discuss current benefit related issues.  SBC team leaders are in regular 
contact with BCAC managers via email or telephone to immediately 
respond to any issues.

1.8 Comprehensive advice continues to extend from initial contact advice to 
representation at appeals; the delivery of that advice is continuing to 
evolve to improve speed and efficiency to the advantage of customers.

1.9 Telephone calls are being answered by Customer Advice and Support 
Service’s via the 0300 100 1800 number.  This provides additional capacity 
for call handling including taking calls over extended hours.  Customers 
are provided with the correct advice at the first pint of contact reducing 
any delay in assistance and eradicating backlogs.  This change has 
ensured that contacts going to Financial Inclusion Officers have now 
reduced allowing Financial Inclusion Officers to concentrate on their core 
duties rather than handling routine enquiries which do not require their 
expertise.

1.10 The SBC website is being continually updated to allow customers to access 
more benefit information online.  An e-form is currently in development to 
allow customers to request assistance with a benefit appeal online.

1.11 Home visits continue to be available to those in need though on occasions 
this is appropriate for other organisations such as Department of Work and 
Pensions (DWP) rather than SBC.  The new Scottish Government Social 
Security Agency to be set up from 2019 has made a commitment to 
offering home visits to customers.  This will increase the home visiting 
capacity across the Scottish Borders to ensure the most vulnerable 
customers are able to access benefit advice and assistance.

1.12 Resources exist to assist in the maximisation of benefit entitlement 
however this is a wider responsibility than SBC and is delivered in various 
ways by SBC, DWP, BCAC, Registered Social Landlords and third sector 
organisations.  The DWP welfare reforms have placed an expectation on 
customers to self-serve online; this has created new and increased 
demands on SBC staff to assist customers with digital skills to allow access 
to benefits.

1.13 It is acknowledged that a wider consultation should have taken place and 
this will be borne in mind for the future.

Page 24



Audit & Scrutiny Committee - 23 August 2018

1.14 Monitoring of the financial position of people within the Borders will 
continue, however the degree of impact which can be attributed to any 
single measure within SBC is impossible to gauge.  Since major reforms 
and changes are taking place nationally that directly affect a cross section 
of the population in a large number of ways, it would be impossible to 
attribute any particular impact or outcome solely to the restructure which 
has taken place within SBC.

1.15 The level and type of resources will be continually reviewed as the impact 
of Universal Credit is better understood and further welfare reforms take 
place.  The shape of the local support of the new Scottish Society Security 
Agency will also be an important factor in the services provided in the 
future.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Audit & Risk Committee acknowledges the 
Petition for Welfare Benefits Service Changes but takes no further 
action at this time.

Approved by

Jenni Craig
Service Director Customer & Communities   Signature ……………………………..

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Jenni Craig Service Director Customer & Communities

Background Papers:  
Previous Minute Reference:  

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jenni Craig can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jenni Craig, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, 
Scottish Borders TD6 0SA, 01835 824000, jcraig@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5 The Petitions Procedure
	6a Petition
	Item No. 6(a) - Test Case 1
	Item No. 6(a) - Test Case 2
	Item No. 6(a) - Petition Comments 2

	6b Briefing Note by Service Director Customer & Communities

